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Name and location of the property. The property known as the Masonic Temple is located at
214 S. South Street, Gastonia NC.

Name and address of the present owner of the property.

Gastonia Masonic Lodge No. 369 AF & AM
c/0 214 S. South Street
Gastonia, NC 28052

Representative photographs of the property.

Map depicting location of the property.

Current deed reference of the property.

Historical sketch of the property prepared by Clara Setzer.

Architectural description of the property prepared by Lara Ramsey.

Reaction from the North Carolina Department of Archives and History, Raleigh NC.

Significance Statement. The 1923 neo-classical structure design by Charlotte architect William
H. Peeps for the Gastonia Masonic Lodge #369 AF & AM is important to Gastonia’s history for its
representation of the prosperity of the early 1920’s.
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DEED RESEARCH - GASTONIA MASQO

NIC TEMPLE PROPERTY

| By the mid 1890s, Oliver W. Davis had acquired extensive land holdings in |
Gaston Coutity and in Gastonia town, Nearly the entire present day downtown

business district in these holdings. The pr
subsequently occupies will be sold off in s

operty which the Masonic Temple
eparate fracts before it is

subsequently acquired by Martin H. Shuford and his heirs and transferred to

the Masonic Temple Association.

The Northern Boundary

ook 155, page 458. The 10 x 220

This deed 1s also recorded in 1902,

Minnie Brown and Aunie Heath

ot adjoining South and Elm streets to

(2)  O.W. Davis transferred a roughly 40 x 220 foot lot to Martin H. Shuford in
1896, recorded in Gaston County Deed B
foot strip at the southern edge of this ot will eveniually be included ag the
northern most area of the Masonic Temple property,

The Cener ?
i

3)  O.W. Davis transferred a 40 x 220 foot ares directly south of the Shuford lot
to Luclida Suggs in 1896, This deed is not regorded until 1902,

(4) - Lucinda Suggs transferred the eastern third of her lot to Martin Shuford, 40
x 72 foot area to Martin Shuford in 1899,
Gaston Deed Book 50, page 52.

(5)  The remaining Suggs lot was inherited by
upon the death of Mrs, Suggs, This descent is described in Gaston Deed Book
54, page 21,

(6)  Annic Heath and her husband transferved the entire 40 % 220 foot lot inherited
from Lucinda Suggs to R.M. Reid for $415 in 1903, recorded in Gaston Deed
Book 34, page 21. The parties were apparently unaware of the previously
described transfer to Martin Shuford,

(7)  R.M. Reid transferred the rest of the Suggs lot, as well as 2 10 x 220 foot area
south of this lot to Martin Shuford for $600 in 1905. The deed is recorded in
1922 in Gaston Deed Book 155, page 459,

The Southern Boundary

(8)  0.W. Davis transferred a 160 x 220 foot |
W.N. Davis in 1896, recorded in 1898, Qaston Deed Book 38, page 98.

(9)  W.N, Davis transferred the same lot to the Gastonia School Board in 1898,
recorded in Gaston Deed Book 40, page 12,

(10)  The Gastonia School Board, having decid

ed not to use the property for

educational purposes, put the lot up for public sale in 1902. The buyer’s

interest was acquired by R M. Reid, as ex
page 328

plained in Gaston Deed Book 47,

s



(11)

R.M. Reid transferred the lot to J. Robinson; however, the dimensions
described in this deed were 150 x 220 feet, as recorded in Gaston Deed Book

66, page 81, The remaining 10 x 220 foot area was incorporated in the
previously described transfer to Martin Shufard,

Shuford heirs to {Llastonia Masonic Temple Association

(12)

(13)

Martin Shuford died intestate on 1/12/17. Bis heirs transferred a 60 x 220 foot
fot for $12,000 to the trustees of Gastonia Lodge 0. 369, Ancient and Free
Accepted Masons in 1922, recorded in Gaston Deed Book 154, page 392,

The succession of the Shuford heirs is documented on this deed.

10/15/1923. Gastonia Lodge no. 369, Ancient Free and Accepted Masons to
the Gastonia Masonic Tomple Association, Incorporated, Recorded in Gaston
Decd Book 177, page 273.

K



Gastonia Masonic Temple & Lodge No. 369

The Masonic order is one of the oldest and the best documented - (
fraternal societies in existence. Stone working masons banded together in
the 14" century or earlier to form groups . These masons were constructing
the large castles and cathedrals of Europe. At the places they gathered to
work they built lodges. A Master Mason was recognized and distinguished
and he led the lodge. To keep out imposters they developed secret rituals,
words and grips. The Acceptive Masonry began about 1600 and became
very important a century later. ' The earliest account of Freemasonry in the .
United States is the history of a lodge organized in Rhode Island in 16582

The Masons have been an important organization throughout history.
Written documentation shows that by the 1770°s lodges had been
established in North Carolina. Some lodges were formed for the sole
purpose of adding members. The Grand Lodge of Freemasonry was
founded in London in 1717. Itissued a commission to Colonel Joseph

i

Monfort of Halifax, NC in 1771, to serve as the “Provincial Grand Master of
and for America.”

The Masons took a large part in the fight for American Independence.
Several of those men who fought in this area were Lt. Col. Fredrick

Hambright, Capt. William Lenior, Col. Joseph McDowell, and Col. John
Sevier . On the British side were Lord Charles Cornwallis and Lord Frances
Rawdon.

The Grand Lodge of North Carolina which governs Freemasonry in
North Carolina today was re-established in December 1787 by ten lodges
that met in Tarborough.’

Gaston County was formed in 1846 from Lincoln County. The first
Masonic Lodge located inside the boundaries of Gaston County was the
Gaston Lodge No. 263, A.F.& AM,, in Dallas. It was given authority to
operate on Jan. 30, 1860 by the Grand Lodge of North Carolina. The Grand
Master was William G. Hill and William T. Bain was the Grand Secretary.
There was not much activity during the years of 1861-1865 due to the War
Between the States. On December 14, 1867, the Lodge was chartered by the

' Axelrod, Alan , The Intemnational Encyclopedia of Secret Societies and Fraternal Orders , Copyright
1997, pages 90-91. ’

2 “Nocalore”, NC Lodge of Research No. 666, A.F. & A.M., Copyright 1935, Volume 1V, Nocalore Press,
page.

? Speidel, Fredrick G., North Carolina Masons in the American Revolution, Copyright 1975,

Press of Oxford Orphanage,

 AO



Gastonia Masonic Temple & Lodge No. 369

Grand Lodge of North Carolina. The Gaston Lodge was the “Mother
Lodge” of the Masons in Gaston County.*

The Airline Lodge, U.D., was formed by 21 members of the
Gaston Lodge on December 3, 1879, in Gastonia, NC. The lodge first met
in the upper story of an old home on the corner of Franklin Avenue and
Marietta Street. They next met in the Beal Building on the corner of Airline
Avenue and Marietta Street; and after that in the Smyre Building on West
Main. In 1899, they met in the Love Building on Main Street. The rent on
this building was $80.00 per year. It was shared by the Odd Fellows and the
Knights of Pythias. The Masons’ portion was $30.00. On Jan. 18, 1901, the
name of the Lodge was changed to Gastonia Lodge, No. 369, A. F & AM.

The lodge moved from the Love Building in 1910 to the 5™ story of
the Reality Building that was also on Main Street. They met in this location
until they moved to their present home on South Street.

The Lodge decided that they needed their own building. A building
committee was made up of F.C. Abernathy, S.N. Boyce, F.J. Thompson,
Marshall Dilling and Charles Ford. The committee picked H.B. Pattillo
from Gastonia to be the contractor. He had built the Armstrong
Presbyterian Church and a Sunday School building at First Presbyterian
Church. The architect was William H. Peers of Charlotte. The Temple cost
$10,000. It was three stories tall. The third story was to be used by the
Commandery and the Chapter. The room was 50 feet by 56 feet. The blue
lodge room and the banquet room are also that same size. There is a Moler
pipe organ, choir loft, and two galleries on the mezzanine floors. Thereisa
ladies’ parlor on the second floor.

When the Temple opened, Masons from all over Gaston County -
attended. There were no charter members living in 1924 when the building
was completed. Ten candidates had degrees conferred on them at the first
meeting in the new temple. The membership at that time was over 600.°

The Masonic order has suborders within the main body. One of these
is the Royal Arch Masonry. You must be a Master Mason to join and it is a
part of the York Rite. It is thought to have been established around 1740.
The Imperial Council of the Ancient Arabic Order of Nobles of the Mystic
Shrine, the Shriners, was founded in 1871 in New York City. You must be
a 32" Degree Mason to be a member. ° This group is associated with the
Shriner’s Children’s Hospitals. The Gastonia Royal Arch Chapter was

* Stowe, Dalton , “History of the Gaston Lodge”,.
5 “Gastonia Lodge No. 369, A.F. & A. M., An Early History Introduction”
6 yL:

Ibid; 1.

zg\



Gastonia Masonic Temple & Lodge No. 369

organized in 1907 and chartered on May 12, 1908. There have been
members of the Gastonia Lodge who have gone on to serve as state officers,
in each of the suborders. Marshall Dilling, Jr., George Currence, James
Fulghum, Paul Yancey, A.G. Myers, Charles Pugh, Andy Melvin, Dan
Craig, and J.S. Winget. Mr. Winget was the Potentate of Oasis Shrine
Temple the year the Shrine Bowl Football Game of the Carolinas was
started. He signed the original authorization. '

Women are not allowed to be Masons but there is an organization that
is associated with them, the Order of the Eastern Star, that allows women
who are the wife, mother, daughter or sister of a Master Mason to join. Itis
2 national organization and was founded around 1876 by Dr. Robert Morris.
There are five degrees in this organization and they are based on five
women from the Bible. These women were Adah, Ruth, Esther, Martha,
and Electa. The Eastern Star is presided over by a Mason, the Worthy
Matron.” The Lorraine Chapter No. 169, Order of the Eastern Star, was
begun on May 24, 1924. It was presented a charter on October 4, 1925,
Miss Charlie Huss was appointed Worthy Matron and Marshall Dilling the
Worthy Patron. The main purpose of the organization is benevolent. They

have 77 members at present, They support the Masonic and Eastern Star
 Home in Greensboro and they sponsor two scholarships, one is for relatives
of Eastern star members and one is for religious education. ®
There ate two organizations for the children. The Order of the
-Demolay for the boys and the Order of the Rainbows for the girls. Both
teach reverence, patriotism, purity, courtesy and fidelity. The Order of the
Demolay in Gastonia is no longer active. The Order of the Rainbows is still
active.
Gastonia Lodge No. 369, A M. & ALF, is still a very active Masonic

lodge. They meet on the 2™ Friday of each month and they currently have a
membership of 335. '

b
Ibid, 1.
8 Thomas, Martha, “Oral History and 1950 Masonic Bulletin.”



Architeetural Deseription
of the
Masonie Temple
Gastonia, NC
The Gastonta Masonie Temple, located on South Btreet, 15 a structure unique to
the landscape of downtown Gastonia. Designed by the well-known Charlette architect
- William H. Peeps, the four-story brick building exhibits unusual architectural detailing
" that reflects the architect’s eclectic and varied style. |
William Peceps, a native of England, moved to Charlotte in 1905 from Grand
Rapids, Michigan and quickly established himself as one of the area’s most talented and
creative archjtecté. His porifolio of projects included some of Charlotte’s most
imprcﬁsive carly-twentieth century buildings — the Latta Arcade, the J.B. Ivey
- Department Store, the Ratcliffe Florist Building, and several residences i the prestigious
residential suburbsl of Myers Park and Dilworth. ! Peep’s deéigﬁ for the Gastonia
Masonic Temple combined an exterior that resembled many commercial buildings of the
period — an unobtrusive yellow brick fagade in common bond with stone detailing — with
more ¢laborate and exotic interior elements. |
The Masonic Temple is a four-story brick structure three bays wide and five bays
deep. The fagade is covered with yellow brick in common bond with decorative stone
detailing. The ground floor of the building features a recessed arched entryway framed

by stone columns and topped with a decorative keystone. The original doors have been+ .

replaced by a steel-framed glass door, and a blue neon hanging sign with the words

! William Huffinan. “Survey and Research Report on the Ratcliff Florist Shop” (Charlotte-Mecklenburg
ITistoric Landmarks Commission, 1984), p.2.
Mattson, Alexander and Associates, Inc. “Survey and Research Report on the Latta Arcade” {Charlotte-
Mecklenburg Historic Lendmarks Commission, 1994), p.3.

A



“Masonic Temple” in white letters (added to the building in the 1950’s) extends over the
sidewalk in front of the entrance. A stone stringcourse visually separates the ground -
floor from the rest of the fagade. The second, third, and fourth stories are visually
contained by a series of four stone pilasters connected at their tops by a modern, detailed
emablature. A shallow stone ledge supported by four brackets tops the ent'ablature. Like
many buildings in urban areas, the Masonic Temple’s side and rear elevations are left
unadomed.

In contrast to this relatively understated exterior, the interior of the Gastonia
Masonic Temple is filled with architectural detailing. French doors and elaborate
moldings can Be found throughout the building. The front entrance hall contains squared,
fhuted piers, a recessed ceiling, and marble baseboards. The stair railings have a simple
but distinctive cutout consisting of an elongated, inverted triangle topped by a circle, and
the newel posts have a cruciform shape with a widened base.

The most impressive elements of Peep’s design can be found in the two meeting
rootus of the Masonic Temple - the Blue Lodge Room on the second floor, and the
Commandery Room on the third fioor. Bdth rooms are arranged around three focal
points which serve as centerpieces for traditional Masonic meetings: the West Station, a
small seating area against the f_'rorrt wall of the room; the South Station, another seating
arca set on the right wall; and the East Station, a seating area sct on a small stage against
the back wall. i.’l%gg are positioned in the centers of both meeting rooms, and three tiers

of wooden benches line the side walls. Exposed beams and decorative brackets tegularly

punctuate the ceilings, and windows line the right walls of the two rooms,

(



While both meeting rooms contain the same basic architectural clements, the
desipn and detail of these elements inake each room distitctive. The Blue Lodpe Roomt
oni the second floor has a more traditional feel — the exposed bewms and brackets are
painted to blend with the ceiling, the windows are z sittiple rectanpular shape, and the
East Station is flatiked by two sifnple, uhadoited srchways. The fnatble tilé coveting a
Toetatigulat sphce ifi fromt of the slter is one of the most initticate featares of the rovit,
with black and white disuotids suttounding a polden stat vet into 7 white fmpble sirde,

The Cortiftiantety Room is even #idte Hihily detaited this ths Blug Lodps Roomi.
The exposed beartts are datkly staified, and the brackets supipottifig the ure mote
otfrately eatved thit those in ths Blue Ludps Room, pivitip the space a feelitip of
forfrality. The witidows along the tight wall 51 behing the West Station sre shaped i
poitited ek (also callid M vues weeh). Bebind ths Bast Stativh of the Connifidery
Rt thiere i3 u stage wres Mddes by floor-to-ceilify drapeties. Withith this stape bres is
a sritll hezzatifie thit Kolds & pipe ofgsf,

Thetg have bk sevetal chsties made to the ititetor of the buildifig. It 1951, aft
elevator was ifistalled ift the cefiter of the staiteas, snd liioleurh stid cutperifg covet
most of the floors. The small informal meeting area on the fourth floor was remodeled
tefl yERts apo, aid fiew flootifig was ifstalled, Bveit witﬁ these glterativis, the Masofiic

Lodge still mgiittaifis ity iitestity 58 o BIstotis struttute,



